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Building Materials(s):
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MASSACHUSETTS HISTORIC BRIDGE INVENTORY Pup.q463)

WEB . qe2 |

Municipality: Dud\e:x),/ Webalec Districth
Street name/Rt. #:_ N Mao .

Over i
Street name/Rt. #: Freach Ryec
Bridge key #:_ TWNDIHOZ20100 Photo ##s:_]D: 2o-22. 4 21A- A
Bridge plan #:__ D-12-20/W-(2-| T0: WGy Ti: iBA-29A
Common/historic name: Nacth V&\‘a%e 'bmdca)e %
Current owner: ;
UTM coordinates: AADHTO ra}km%: 20 (-10-86)
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National Register status (insert date) ¥ Field rating:_ -
*
L] 3 *
Entered: Potentn..aZ.L: ¥ @ > 1
Eligible: Non-eligible: ¥
*
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Date built (source): 1871 ( Edwards & keleeu = zee biblic )

Date(s) rebuilt (source): . ¥

Builder (source): M \eC2. blgggfﬂ. & Coueniec - prewmabl% blod%eﬂ&CurrSo g Na‘\’iot\a‘?}f‘ld%eay :
Designer (source): Teon Worke “ ( - sec biblio) H

B s s T T T e T R ey e T e

Structural type/materials: AlO

pm-cocmec{ed, wrough«\- and ankr iron Packer POﬁ‘é‘h‘Ubb. 9 pane,\c‘ corved opper chaord.
cmgaed, om%ie._ d‘\mbonavcouq{'ev in 7 Qen"rai Pune\o; omcge drax ona\o onlxé)m end Paﬂe_\o.‘

Appenro 1o incor oraje_ a_“ of the cea*urea claimed n C - Packecs IBT0 Paje”* (*iOOJe?)

(mc\udm%; vanable-\e_ogh end panelo (S truos iv ca. D' lonage than N fruss, with all of the dlference

‘occug-m 0 the end ane\a),‘ u_)x‘oo%h* 1ron VQVJHQCJQ u_)Ah cast iron eues at both endsy and caa& tron
\%\mo“ -b\oc‘cou o '.)keu)-back:s (nouq \a«%e‘a hldder) M“"hm \a¥e(‘ Qoﬁcre_;e abu‘(’menjf Qac\n%,)

Overall length:__ 7T’ Deck width/layout:_ |9.° aul rect
Skew: -

Main unit, # spans: ! lengths: 68
Approaches, # spans:__ - lengths: -
Plaque:_ No location: -

Alterations, unusual features, comments:

Timbee :ﬂ'mn%ero and dack are modern (Undodbted replaced NOMeroUD times), and 99
opard rail was added to inner {aces of {rooses in 19F7. There ace amall welded Pia’ta ren-
Lorcements on the NW end poot and the western ends ol the nodhern lower chord. Mot
of dhe ocaimal southern q\uard(‘o\‘ 15 qene (some of & 15 aow - 8/6/86 - ‘nan%m in the cwer),
Two sets of cweted side cover p\a{eo oa western hip of N tcoss mas. be adddions. ~ Olhecuwsise,
the ofrudure looks to be 2o buill, albed 5omeu)ha& damaced Par\tcu\ar“~ , collivion damaag
to both weatern end Pgo{a, {o some \(evinca( N\embe(‘o\ a some dia onéab/ cwn*erg)‘ and
with s om%ma[ * Hheoot-blocks " nouws boried \os%e added concrefe abalment Cacm%o ~(agy
report 10 B Histories saus abdments then were oncoursed wel rubble)

“Field cwels ™ 10 oppec chord sphces ace aduall‘s cone-headed bolts (s appears 0 all 3
Massachosetts earks Parkec 1russ brdogs )
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http://sa.inq.Baj
http://suoxq.Bjaq.xv
file:///cpua
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%\D%S/
Visual quality (bridge and setting): High_Xx Average Low WeB 902
Site integrity: Retained_X Violated

Describe: Dri crodoes a neck 10 apkdur oe millpond af Rorthars Gid o})Nor\h
Village of Weboler A fecraced At o cemetary foes over the kaoll PCC\OCS‘“\& u_‘,eo\' end of {he

bridag. Achve railroad line runs op cadt vide pond \\UOJY back kr‘om be %e;abando(\ed"k?\ line
Crosdes thio and thepond on a{hroooh truvs and 2 p\a‘e qrder opans. Racly % ., Factary villaae
History of bridge and site: steelehes sauth on \veerr aside behin {r:}zo_

Firot bmd%e on {hio a\!te wa:?i‘ground 1812, when the North th\a&eiDam was builk 4a
c a cotan mill. This dam flooded ot what had {acmerly been = facdin p‘ace
across dhe French Riwver and oParked conatruction of the oramal bmd%e aniRis aite.
Thio st bmdc“se wao (‘QP\’GCed bas cmo-“wer, *imber améure 0 1859, which wao rep“acec,\

0 foen, bts {he. P(-e@er)lf Iron *rus:; bridag 0 1871. The 1871 bmd%e e rePor+edl6bu.\\L

"Musers, Dlodoght and Corrier oc’boagn * e t2100. Thio undoub‘f‘ed\«j celecsHo
‘zﬁ\mm Dlodaett and Cadwallader Corru'd “Na&xoqa\ bmd%e_ and Tron Works of 'baoiton, w\‘k
whom Chacles N Parker was allliated 20 Conauu-iﬁ&Engneer.

Charles W Packer's pa\@kd drveo deo\@ of 18710 usas ﬂo\tuble for & heavy reliance on
guooo%hh Father Yhan the more fracile cadt, won, for e\emeo'#_s xxh as the vertical Poa‘o andthe
t:U\H-uF oppec chord; and ds Q\e»ubdx\é (ihe vanable lenalh end Paﬁelo) within what cemzined
a otandacd desiap whose elements eould be Mass- produced . It was a \“‘%hla MR

desiap for to 4'“"3, and NOMero0d e_xamp\e:; are known to have beer_built. Few, hodever,
fCemain .

Sources: *Nocth V\“acz? 'bmd%e_“ xeroxed *‘éPeanl‘ apparenjc\

\}c‘oduced Cor Yhe Websster Historcal
BH. ~ Commiosion, a 19 00w 10 the MDPW Hé - e Gor D-12-20y/W-12 -

ﬂ::: :: Dentio M. Zembala, Elm Ofceet Brrdae (Woodotock VT Wood stock. Nahional Tl s
R No Disteick Commission, 1Q77).

dd b"‘ o %ne converoaxmon : 7 A‘)% ‘c{%, 7.\ %Pe(‘ UJ/‘KObeA \J'Q 9—\. §M\¥\\5°n\ahln§{\“ux\00,

Converoaton, 1l Mau 1983, .. Roper w/ Eck Delong, HAERL
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Summary statement of significance: : :

One of {he 4 oldeot kaocuwn metal truso bf'd‘an (OU* ot IQ7) n the MDPW 0*‘63‘6&)162 c,om‘)us\ertzed
data base; and 20d oldest of the 5 known Packer Arooses 10 the datz base. (the B neweot
Parkec PO Yroooes were boilt 1n the 19208 and bear liftle resemblance o the Pa{en*ed 1870
Packer deo(eg)_ Sorvwing bmdcsec which closel \)o\\ow the omcsna\ Parcker paj(en‘\' are extremel

rare nationally , and fhe Dudles /Webster bmd%e_ o apat‘xlcdur‘ example of {he type 1n
dhat ¢ incorpotates all of Packers patented (2= orey, woo bui {he Qe o Ifon-workers
with uihom Charles K. Packer wuas ai’?.\\a\e as "Conoolina E ineer,’ and hao d’)&ef‘ed
welvally no maee droctocal a“era*!oﬁo. T aloo refans a ‘ur&e Porhon of do (Cxppa(‘enx :Q m%ma\
\con %uardrm\o\ and oo I1n aP\dureo%ue. coral oeﬂ'm% '

Statement prepared by: 7.3 Rooper Date: 8 Axq. 198G

PR E R S R RS R R R R SR AR PR R PR T YA
Field survey by: 5.J. Rcper, MDPW Hm*omc'bmdqea 5occxa[li>{ Date: 13 Jept. 1984
i N}

1 dola 1983
GAuzg. 1986
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MDPW RECOMMENDATION - NATIONAL REGISTER ELIGIBILITY pun.q03/ T
WeR 462 i
Municipality Street on No.
Bridge: Dudlegy/Weboter N Mawn 3¥~/Frcr\ch Ruwee D-12-20/W-12-|
Historic evaluation )
Significant because:
1) Unusual or unique type Pl
or rare survivor ofozzeouunon type Parker Pon:sh‘ut)‘\‘; Y.
2) Early example of type (8Tl M
3) Design - Valuable contribution to bridge technology N
4) Retains integrity few a“era‘\oﬁo‘ but some collivion dama%e. X ;
5) Builder known and important X
6) Bridge historically important to area .. v

Not significant because:

1) Common type

2) Post-1931

3) Design - no contribution to bridge technology

a) alterations

somewhat dam

4) Integfity lost because of:

5)
6)

Potentially eligible Not eligible

b) disintegration
Builder unimportant or not known

No known significance in area

but located

Comments :

One of 4 o\deo‘ melal druss br

a8 Au% 198G 2.8 Rope

S SR DR Ao

MDPW Hm‘onc—bﬂd%o f)PQc(a‘lo{

one of onl -4 kKaown oorvwmaear‘
%but‘%, a Pﬂua. e bmd% ™ Lawr*cnce; and the

Not eligible individually,

s 10 dhe MDPW da‘ baOc_ 2 httle a“’ered, it
. N examp‘e of the nnovad e, *en“ed Parker desiap of 1870 mcorpqra.x\
all of Packerd patented feddores. Nadionall
pzﬁen‘(’ bmd%es (3he olher 37 F-4-13 10 Fitd
rcceo*“us teossectomived ' Elm Otceel ‘brtd%e 9 Woodo*ock \T. )

6 —Paf‘kgr




MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET -- MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2009
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MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET

MHC Inventorv scanning nroiect 2008-2009
Seldas
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MHC INVENTORY FORM CONTINUATION SHEET D12z-2¢/ MACRIS No. OB 903>
MHC Inventory scanning project, 2008-2009 Wz WEB. 702
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DETERMIRATION OF ELIGIBILITY (MiC OPINION) DUD. 40_7
WEe 94>

™ P fs‘y 7/ " RETURN TO REVIEWER BY

e 3/0/5
TOWN: buqﬂ/e; /ﬂ)~e!s

PROPERTY: ZD-/2 20 / D) ~12~1 ppat, paiv St auen Freacs!
(NAME AND' ADDRESS) /72,

:

1. Does this property meet the cntena for R e11g1b111ty" :

X YES : : | )

» - ' : : i ; :

A. Criteria ; ;
a. events
b. 1lives

c. characteristics =
d. information

B. Llocal . State : National "~ 1/ 2,

-

2. Statement of Si'gnificance:u OR VWhy not eligible?
(871 Frebeii gz it
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(CIDOE LETTER WRITTEN" ~— ~ FILED IN'ER FILE -

(DATE)
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The Commonwealth of Massachusetts

Office of the Secretary of State
Michael Joseph Connolly, Secretary

Massachusetts Historical Commission
Valerie A. Talmage

Executive Director

State Historic Preservation Officer

April 2,.1987

Mr. James A. Walsh

Division Administrator

Federal Highway Administration
Transportation Systems Center
55 Broadway - 10th Floor
Cambridge, MA 02142

ATTN: Mr. Biram Pearlman

RE: Parker/Camelback Trusses - National Register Eligibility

Dear Mr. Walsh:

The Massachusetts Historical Commission staff has reviewed the historic
bridge inventory forms prepared by the Massachusetts Department of Public
Works. The MHC concurs with the preliminary findings of the MDPW that the
following bridges appear to meet the criteria for listing in the National
Register of Historic Places.

Haverhill B-12--€ Railroad Ave. over Merrimack River

This 1906 Parker through truss has been previously reviewed by the MHC and
was determined elicible for the National Register of Historic Places. This
1906 bridge is the oldest known multi-span Parker through truss.

Dudl ey/Webster D-12-20/W-12-1 North Main St. over French River

This 1871 Parker pony truss is one of the four known surviving early Parker
patent bridges in the United States. This bridge has all of Parker's
patented features. It is also one of four oldest metal truss bridges in

Massachusetts.

CHANGING DETERMINATION TO POTENTIALLY ELIGIBLE

Fitchburg F-4-13 Lower Rollstone St. over North Nashua
River

1870 pin connected wrought and cast iron Parker pony truss--This bridge and
L-2-4 are the oldest known metal truss bridges in Massachusetts.

Nationallv, one of four known surviving examples of the original parker's
patented features.
80 Boylston Street, Boston, Massachusetts 02116 (617) 727-8470




The MBC disagrees with the preliminary finding of the MDPW that the

following bridae does not appear to meet criteria for listing in the
National Reagister of Historic Places.

Somerville S-17-22 McGrath Highway over Boston & Maine RR
This 1926 camelback through truss is the only known camelback desian in
Massachusetts. The camelback truss is classified by HAER as a different
type that the Parker truss. Notwithstanding the replacement of the upper

lateral system and the deck, the trusses are basically intact.

The following bridges do not appear to meet National Register criteria.

Great Barrington G-11-66 Cottage St. over Housatonic River
Great Barrington G-11-14 US-7 over Housatonic River
Ludlow/Springfield L-16-16/S-24-1 West St./River St. over Chicopee River
North Adams N-14-16 State-2 over Hoosic River

If you have any further guestions, please feel free to contact
William Smith at this office.

Sincerely,

Vil T

Valerie A. Talmage
Executive Director
State Historic Preservation Officer
Massachusetts Eistorical Commission

cc: Mr. Frank Bracaglia, MDPW

VAT /WS/ dr




North Village Bridge

Spanning the French River on North Main Street
Webster

Worcester County

Massachusetts

PHOTOGRAPHS
REDUCED COPIES OF MEASURED DRAWINGS
WRITTEN HISTORICAL AND DESCRIPTIVE DATA

Historic American Engineering Record
National Park Service
Department of the Interior
Washington, DC 20013-7127
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HAER No. MA-99
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HISTORIC AMERICAN ENGINEERING RECORD

INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS

North Village Bridge HAER No. MA-99
Spanning the French River on North Main Street

North Village, Town of Webster

Worcester County

Massachusetts

Martin Stupich, Photographer, Summer 1990

MA-99-1

MA-99-2

MA-99-3

MA-99-4

MA-99-5

MA-99-6

MA-99-7

MA-99-8

MA-99-9

MA-99-10

MA-99-11

MA-99-12

MA-99-13

MA-99-14

MA-99-15

General view from hill, looking southeast
General view from roadway, looking east
General view of west portal, looking east
General view from roadway, looking west
General view of east portal, looking west

Detail of north truss from center of span, showing truss
configuration and upper chord connections, looking north

Detail of north truss from west end of span, showing truss
configuration and upper chord connections, looking north

Detail of underside of south upper chord, looking southeast
Oblique view of south truss from roadway, looking southeast

Detail of sidewalk railing on north side of bridge, looking
northeast

Oblique view of south truss from southwest corner of span,
looking northeast

Detail of south truss, showing lower chord and floor system
connections, looking northeast

Detail of south truss, showing truss geometry and connections,
looking northeast

Detail of southwest endpost, showing flat casting (compare to
rounded casting shown in MA-99-15)

Detail of northwest endpost, showing rounded casting (compare to
flat casting shown in MA-99-14)
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SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-1
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HISTORIC AMERICAN ENGINEERING RECORD
SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-2
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HISTORIC AMERICAN ENGINEERING RECORD
SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-3
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SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-4
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SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-5
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HAER No. MA-99-6
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SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS

HAER No. MA-99-7
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HAER No. MA-99-8
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HAER No. MA-99-9

ITAZ< MA- 77
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SEE INDEX TO PHOTOGRAPHS FOR CAPTIONS
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HAER No. MA
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HAER No. MA-99-11
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HAER No. MA-99-12
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HAER No. MA-99-14
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NORTH VILLAGE BRIDGE - 13871
WEBSTER, MASSACHUSETTS

64'-115/g"(19.82 M)

to Webster

Concrete reinforcement

South Elevation  Scale: 3/16 "ef'- o

012343
=1

The Massachusetts Historic Bridge Project is part of the
Historlc American Engineering Record (HAER), a long-range
program to document historically significant engineering and
Industrial sites in the United States. The Natlonal Park
Service, U.S. Department of the Interior, administers the
HAER program. The Massachusetts Department of Public
Works, Jane F. Garvey, Commissioner, George R. Turner, Jr.,
Chlef Engineer, ond Stephen J. Roper, Historic Bridge
Specialist ; and the Historic American Engineering Record
(HABS/HAER), Dr. Robert J. Kapsch, Director, co-sponsored
the Massachusetts Historic Bridge Profec! with the
cooperation of the Massachuserts Historical Commission,
Elsa Fltzgerald, Acting Exec. Director. The fleld team under
the direction of Eric Delony, Chief and Princlpal Architect,
HAER, consisted of Donlel L. Schodek, professor of
architectural technology (Harvard Unlvarslry) fleld supervisor,
Patricia Reese (Boston Architectural Center), Gary
Kleinschmidt (Harvard University), Chris Payne (Columbia
University), Morgen Fleisig (Harvard University), Mark Rowan
(Catholic University of America), and Rudoif Sosef (Technical
Unliversity of Delft, the Netherlands; US/ICOMOS ),
architectural techniclans; Lola Bennett (University of
Vermont ), Patrick Harshbarger (University of Delaware/Hagley
Museum and Library), and John Healey (University of
Birmingham, England; US/ICOMOS ), historians; and Marty
Stupich (Massachusetts College of Art), photographer.

Fr-nch River

20 FEET

East

- —=—=" abutment
s

Concrete reinforcement

o ! 2 3 < 3 METERS
= i:64

NORTH VILLAGE BRIDGE

North Village Bridge displays most of the features of Charles H. Parker's
patented design of 1870 (#100,/185) for an “Improved truss bridge.” Wrought
iron was used extensively within the structure. The design was characterized
by @ curved upper chord Icﬂnlnaﬂnq ln incined hlps, and pln—cannﬂ:ltd Prvll
configuration wed used a
shop riveting and field bolrs Parker's deslgn was devised to be strong, ycr
economical. It could be applied speedlly and with little adaptation to a
voriety of span lengths and pn-exlsﬂng crossing condltions. Variations Iin
fruss lengths were leved through ficatl the 'y of the end
panel. Parker achieved the economy of malerlcl Inherenr In a cu'vod upper
chord, ond stlll maintained a uniform ¢ y In
mlformlry permitted economlies of production rhrough prclabrlcarlon ol
standardized components.

The North Village Bridge was built in 1871, at a cost of $35-50 per foot,
as a replacement for @ timber span. The sirucfure was lhe produc! of
the Boston-based National Brldql and Iron Works, where Parker served as the
company's “Consuiting Engineer.” During his 7-year lenure al the company
some I50 bridges were constructed. Today, survivors ore exiremely rore;
perhaps only 5 remain nationally, of which 3 are In Massachusetts. Within
the state the bridge Is one of the 4 oidest iron highway bridges. Widespread
adoption of derivatives of Parker's design occurred latter In the century.

x! 3i/g°
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East Portal

/i
UTM 19.261750.4660800

Based on Massachusetts D.P.W.
Generol Highway Map (1975)
Reglon E, sheet 8 ond 1.

Local Mg,

Scale: I: 25,000
o
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o 1 2 xm
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ERECTION SEQUENCE

The upper curved chord of the truss is made of five
separate shop-riveted sections aond connected by
splice plates. The piates were shop riveted to the
ends of one or another of the sections and later field
bolted to adjocent sections at the site. The specitic
pattern of shop rivets and field bolts present
suggests that the rruss was designed to be
assembled in a specific sequence, beginning with
the topmost chord section. The following sequence
is conjectural.
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SEQUENCE FOR CHORD,
HIP AND SKEWBACK
ASSEMBLY

| Evidence suggests that the old
timber bridge at the site was used ags
a platform to build the new truss
upon. Pre-manufactured sections
with were lgid fiat on top of the
platform.

2.The topmost piece of each truss was
laid in place. Adjacent sections were
added, with the projecting splice
plates slipping over the ends of the
top piece. Members were aligned,
and field boits dropped into place.
The end hips (with the lower
skewback connections possibly
already attached) were similorly
connected to the pieces just
installed. Lower chords and verricals
(with lower pin receivers aiready
attached) were then put in place.
Upper pins were dropped into place
Dlagonais were Inserted from below,
All boits and nuts were put into
place, but not tightened.

. The final alignment of members was
made. All fieid boits were tightened
in the upper and lower chords.

4 One truss was lifted, temporarily
braced laterally, and transverse
beams were inserted across the

lower chord of the upright truss and

on top of the lower chord of the

remaining truss. The second truss

was roised and laterally braced.
Field bolt connections between
verticals and transverse beoms
were made.

& The remporoary lateral dbracing was

removed. Longitudinal timber beams

(stringers) were placed, foliowed by the
transverse decking.

6 The bridge was completed by

smoothing the approaches, adding
railings, and removing the old timber

work.

irst - 1i tiat
L First - Upper section ploced fiat on piatform

Splice Plate
Second - Adjocent section placed ond
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Third - Next section piaced ond
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— Fourth - Hip member placed and
fiaid Botted 1o edjocent section

Fith . Wrought iron strap
wrapped aground cos! iron skewback
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NORTH VILLAGE BRIDGE
(NORTH MAIN STREET BRIDGE)
HAER No. MA-99

Spanning the French River on North Main Street, one-quarter
mile upstream from the North Village Dam, between the towns
of Dudley and Webster, Worcester County, Massachusetts

UTM: Webster, Mass., Quad. 19/466080/2617500

1871
Wrought- and cast-iron Parker pony truss bridge

Unknown; design based on 1870 patent by Charles H. Parker

National Bridge & Iron Works, Boston

Town of Webster, Massachusetts

Vehicular and pedestrian bridge
Pedestrian bridge only, closed to vehicles

The North Village Bridge is one of only five known surviving
Parker patent trusses in the United States, and the second
oldest of the three located in Massachusetts. The bridge
was built by the National Bridge & Iron Works of Boston, a
significant late-nineteenth century bridge-building company,
for which Parker was Chief Engineer. The bridge’s design
was particularly innovative in achieving the economies of
material inherent in the curved top chord, yet lending
itself to mass-production by the standardization of panel
dimensions. The truss length could be adjusted by
alterations to the end panels alone. The design could be
mass-produced, and applied speedily and cheaply to pre-
existing crossings.

Documentation of the North Village Bridge is part of the
Massachusetts Historic Bridge Recording Project, conducted
during the summer of 1990 under the co-sponsorship of
HABS/HAER and the Massachusetts Department of Public Works,
in cooperation with the Massachusetts Historical Commission.

John Healey, HAER Historian, August 1990
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Description

The North Village Bridge, also known as the North Main Street Bridge,
crosses the French River one-quarter of a mile upstream from the North Village
Dam in Webster, Massachusetts. Since the eighteenth century, the stream
provided power for textile mills, and North Village developed in response to
an increasing demand for worker's housing near the mills. The dam, thought to
have been built in the early-nineteenth century, considerably broadened the
stream, forming an elongated lagoon extending upstream for more than a mile.

The bridge is located at the narrowest crossing point, and shares this
neck of land with a now-abandoned railroad bridge. Beyond the railroad, the
land rises past a Victorian railroad depot to a low plateau, the site of the
sprawling early-nineteenth century factory village. To the west, the land is
undeveloped, save for a Catholic graveyard. The river forms the boundary
between the townships of Webster and Dudley, though the present bridge has
always been the exclusive responsibility of the former.

The bridge is a single-span, pin-connected, wrought- and cast-iron
Parker pony truss. The bridge is approximately 68’ long and 13'-3%" wide,
with a 5’-3%" sidewalk extending from the north truss. The polygonal upper
chord, comprised of straight built-up sections, appears as an upward curve in
elevation, and rises to a height of 9’'-6" above the bottom of the lower chord,
at the center of the span. Each truss has nine panels, defined by vertical
members connecting the upper and lower chords. While the truss geometry and
member sizes are consistent in both trusses, one truss is slightly longer than
the other, presumably to accomodate pre-existing abutments. The north truss
measures 63'-0" in length, while the south truss measures 67'-8" in length.
This was accomplished by varying the lengths of the upper and lower chord
members in the end panels only, just as Charles Parker mentioned in his 1870
patent.
it The upper chord, with inclined endposts, is built up of three plates and
four angles, connected by rivets, with lacing on the underside. The camber of
the chord above the hip intersection is 4’. The chord is comprised of five
factory-riveted sections. The joints between them are made by gusset plates
lapped onto all chord plates. The gusset plates are factory-riveted on that
side of the joint away from the center line, and field-bolted on that side of
the joint closest to the center line. The heads of the field bolts have the
appearance of undriven rivets, and are made up with hexagonal bolts. The
inclined endposts are connected to the upper chord by similar means, and are
in section similar to--though deeper than--the upper chord.

The bottom chord is comprised of paired 6"x%" wrought bars. Each chord
span is made up of five individual bars, bolted and fishplated together. The
two chord spans are linked by a 6"x%" wrought bar that is wrapped around, and
bolted to the terminal skewback. By this means the upper chord effectively
becomes a tied arch. Web members are fastened by pin connections, elsewhere
fastenings are made by a combination of rivets and field bolts, allowing
differentiation of factory- and field-assembled units. All bridge components
are made of wrought iron, save for the cast-iron skewbacks, connecting hip and
lower chord, and the pin connection bosses.

The bridge rests on uncoursed wet rubble abutments, which have been
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extended by concreting, thus concealing the skewback joint between the hip of
the upper and lower chords. The (Lower) Rollstone Street Bridge at Fitchberg
(HAER No. MA-102) has Parker-patent skewbacks that are still visible. They
comprise of an integral hollow casting, shaped to receive both hip and bottom
chord. The thrust of the top chord is transmitted to the skewback via a notch
into which the hip top plate fits. The hip is fastened to the skewback by
means of square headed set bolts, which are made up in factory drilled and
tapped holes within the casting (i.e. no nuts are needed). The base of the
skewback casting is corrugated. At the fixed end of the bridge, the castings
rest directly on the abutment, the corrugations presumably giving additional
grip. At the rolling end, the corrugations are occupied by round bar roller,
which bear on a bedplate. It is assumed that these features are buried within
the concrete at North Village Bridge.

The verticals are connected to the upper and lower chords by means of
patented connections. The patented connections eliminate the saddle plates
commonly used when making pin-connected joints. Both connections are factory
fabrications comprising of a cast-iron boss connected by a wrought-iron strap
riveted to the I-beam. The casting forms a journal for the pin that connects
vertical and upper chord. The casting is 6" wide, thus its outer edges form a
boss which provides a precise fit within the chord. No other members are
connected to this joint. The casting for the bottom connections is rather
more complex. At its lower end it is bored and slotted to receive the pin
connections for the diagonals and counter diagonals. These are the only pin-
connected members at this joint. The main body of the casting is wasted down
above this connection to form a narrow seat on which the edge of the bottom
chord is located. The paired bottom chords are separated by a factory-riveted
spacer at this point, thus ensuring their location on the seats. The joint is
secured in this position by bolts, which clamp the sides of the twin bottom
chord members to the flats of the flanges of the vertical. Some verticals are
identified as the product of the Phoenix Iron Works of Philadelphia.

The diagonals and counter diagonals are arranged in a Pratt
configuration, and their dimensions vary according the stress distribution
within the structure. Within the center panels both diagonals are of 1%-inch
rods. Elsewhere, the diagonal rods increase in dimension from 1" to 1%"
toward the end panels. Conversely, the counter diagonal rods increase in size
from %" to 1%" towards the center panel. They are absent in the end panels.
All diagonals have die-forged eyes at their base, and are threaded at the top.
They are pinned at the base, while they pass through the upper chord to be
tensioned by nuts, which bear on finely detailed cast spacing washers.

The transverse beams are of rolled wrought-iron "I" section of 6%"x4".
They are arranged at each panel point, where they rest on the bottom chord,
and are secured in position by a single bolt through the web of the vertical.
A conventional system of longitudinal stringers and transverse planks forms
the decking. The sidewalk is built on the transverse beams extended beyond
the north truss. It features an example of National Bridge'’s standard
balustrading, comprising of cast-iron posts with raised panel details and
wrought-iron railings. Insofar as can be ascertained, the bridge was never
embellished with the characteristic National Bridge decorative hip bollards
bearing the maker's name.
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Bridge Design

Charles Parker's patented truss (U.S. Patent #100,185) of February 22,
1870, represents a significant stage in the evolution of the iron bowstring
tied arch truss bridge. Parker'’s design was notable in the extensive use of
wrought iron, and was particularly innovative in the hipped termination of the
upper chord, which allowed the truss to be altered in length "within certain
limits," permitting standardization of members in all save the end panels.(See
Appendix A.)

Engineers had long recognized the mechanical advantages inherent in the
arched form, which combined great strength with minimal material requirements.
Depending on how closely the arc of the upper chord resembled a parabola, the
stresses within the chord were roughly equal, and corresponded to the minimum
stresses that occur towards the end of a straight upper chord. In contrast,
the straight upper chord has forces that vary along its length, minimum
stresses equivalent to those of the entire arched chord occurring at the ends,
while maximum stresses occur at the centre. Such characteristics had always
presented a dilemma to bridge engineers. An arched form was mechanically
efficient, and minimized the use of materials, however it did not lend itself
to mass-production, for as span length was altered, so the geometry of all
truss members would change. The parallel chords of the conventional truss
could easily be varied, with little effect on the panel geometry; however, for
a given span length they required greater amounts of material to balance the
greater stresses present at the center of this form. Material requirements in
the upper chord could be reduced by varying their amounts in relationship to
the changes in stresses from center to end post. Such customizing of J
fabrication procedures incurred additional costs.

Parker might be seen as a successor to Burr, Whipple and Moseley. Burr
introduced the arch to the wooden truss form. Whipple pioneered the arch form
in iron, employing cast upper chords in his patented bridge of April 24, 1841
(U.S. Patent #2,064). Moseley'’s patented bridge of February 3, 1857 (U.S.
Patent #16,572) used wrought iron exclusively. Parker’s design was clearly an
improvement over these designs, for it achieved the optimum use of material
inherent in the curved upper chord, yet did so without sacrificing the
economies of standardized mass-production of components. As both chord height
at particular panel points, and panel width were standardized, so verticals,
diagonals, and bottom chords could be produced to standard dimensions. The
variation in end panel configuration was achieved by two means: varying the
angle of the hip, and altering the length of the hip. It would appear the
company produced a series of "skewback" castings, in which the angle of
reception of the hip was altered. The hip angle at the Lower Rollstone Street
Bridge (HAER No. MA-102) is 45 degrees, while that at the North Village Bridge
is 60 degrees. Apparently, the steeper hip angle was used where the end
panels were short, ensuring that the diagonal in that panel was acting at an
efficient angle. When the end panel length was particularly long, then in
addition to the use of the 45-degree skew-back, vertical rods were applied
from the endpost-upper chord intersection to the bottom chord. Once the
skewback had been selected the hip length was adjusted so that both top chords
were of the same height. At the North Village Bridge, these lengths are 6'-0"
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on the shorter northerly truss, and 5’'-3" -on the longer southerly truss. The
use of cast-iron pin connection journals, held in place by wrought-iron straps
appears to be a means of achieving reasonable engineering tolerances of
assembly at minimal cost.

C.H. Parker and the National Bridge & Iron Works

Neither the biographical history of C.H. Parker or the company history
of the National Bridge & Iron Works is well documented. Charles H. Parker was
born ca.1842 at Ashburnham, Massachusetts.! It appears he was born into a
family with a manufacturing and engineering background, having begun his
engineering career in the firm of J.B. Parker, designing textile and shoe-
making machinery. Until he became involved with the National Bridge &
Ironworks in 1868, he applied himself to motive power applications, taking a
position, in 1860 with J.R. Robinson of Boston. He then became involved in
experimental work for the Shaw Hot Air Engine Company.2 His first bridge
design appears to have been a cantilevered Warren truss. The Solid Lever
Bridge Company of Boston was apparently founded in 1867 to manufacture the
bridge, however it is uncertain whether the company built any bridges.3 The
company does not appear in the Boston city directories of the period.

Although Parker's "truss bridge" was not patented until February 22,
1870, it is clear from advertising literature that it had been in production
for some time prior to this date. The National Bridge & Iron Works was always
closely associated with C.H. Parker. There is no record of any other company
producing the patented design, however, bridges and roof trusses designed by
others were also produced at National Bridge under the direction of Parker,
notably The Quinnipiac Bridge at New Haven, and the roofs for the Museum of
Fine Arts, the Post Office and Treasury in Boston.* National Bridge was in
operation from 1868 until 1875. D.H. Andrews, a former employee, bought the
machinery of the company in 1876, when it was in receivership. The Boston
Bridge Works evolved two years later with Andrews as proprietor. National
Bridge formed around the operations of two metal working companies: Blodgett
& White Iron and Steel, of 70 Fulton Street, Boston, William A. Blodgett
having been established in that trade for some time; and Cadwalader Curry's
younger Boston-based company, The Metallic Compression Casting Company. The
National Bridge and Iron Works was first listed in the 1869 Boston Directory,
at which time the company shared an office with Curry'’s company, at 46
Congress Street. The first listing for C.H. Parker was in this directory as
- well. He resided in Charlestown. By the following year, Blodgett and Curry
were listed as the proprietors of the National Bridge & Iron Works, and C.H.
Parker was listed as a consulting engineer in bridge construction. Later
company advertising refers to C.H. Parker as the company's Chief Engineer. A
period of stability in company affairs prevailed for the next two years, the
company advertising its expertise in building bridges "in difficult
foundations, deep water, and soft bottoms."

From 1873 until the company went out of business in 1875, the Boston
Directory shows the company undergoing annual changes in its management. By
1873, Blodgett had left the company, and Parker had taken his place as co-
proprietor. The company had also moved its headquarters to 15 State Street.
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In addition to listing their expertise in bridge and foundation work, the
advertising for that year also mentions the company’s abilities to provide
roof trusses, having special designs for long span roofs for railroad termini.

By the following year, Curry had left the company to be replaced as
joint proprietor with C.H. Parker by one Carey B. Dopp of New York. The
company has become C.H. Parker & Co, trading as National Bridge & Ironworks,
with offices now at 27 Pemberton Square, and works on the East Boston
waterfront at McKay's Wharf, Border Street. An 1874 Boston atlas shows an
extensive facility of some 15,000 square feet. The premises appear to have
been purpose-built, 1867 fire insurance maps showing none of this development.
During 1875, the last year of trading the company remained as restructured in
1874.

During C.H. Parker's tenure at National Bridge over 150 bridges are said
to have been produced.® It is uncertain how many of these were to C.H.
Parker’s own design, and of these how many conformed to his patented truss.
The largest bridges to his design were built across the Merrimack at Lowell,
Haverhill, and Tyngsborough.’

Parker appears to have maintained his association with the iron trade.
He headed the firm of Parker, Field & Mitchell, and was involved with The
Charles River Iron Works of Cambridgeport. His later work seems to have been
principally concerned with the production of manufacturing plants. Parker
died on August 31, 1897, at his home in Cambridge.

Local History

Originally part of the town of Dudley, Webster was incorporated in its
own right in 1832, as it outgrew its older neighbor to become a significant
center of textile manufacture. Correspondingly, the old center of Dudley
became a backwater as this town developed as a twin sister to Webster, on the
opposite side of the French River.

It is said that in pre-colonial times the Indians used the site of the
North Village Bridge as a ford across the river, and that such a use continued
as the area was settled, and was only to be dislocated by the flooding
consequent upon the construction of the North Village Dam. Samuel Slater's
"Plan of the Town of Dudley," dated 1740, provides evidence of early
developments in the community. The river, then known as the Stony River, was
bridged at two points only, both carrying county roads: one on the road that
was to become known as the Central Turnpike (Boston to Hartford), about which
the settlements of Webster, and Dudley were to nucleate; and the other close
to the Connecticut border, near the present Perryville Crossing. The site of
the North Village Dam was already the site of a grist mill and a saw mill, but
there is no evidence of a bridge at that location.

Textile manufacture began at North Village in 1812, with the
establishment of the Village Cotton, Wool & Linen Manufacturing Company. It
is thought likely that a dam was constructed to power this company's factory,
although it is not clear whether it was constructed to the full dimensions of
the present structure. The company’s finances were uncertain, and in 1814 the
company was reestablished as the Village Factory Company. The effects of
these developments were twofold: the old ford was flooded, and the growth of
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the North Village began. Both events contributed to the need for a new
crossing, possibly satisfied as early as 1812.

Samuel Slater, the textile manufacturing pioneer, was closely associated
with developments at North Village. His first manufacturing site became the
East Village. In 1824 Slater purchased the Village Factory Company, together
with the water power rights, and the scale of activity increased apace as
Slater expanded his cotton manufacturing activities at this site, forming The
Phoenix Thread Company. The North Village correspondingly grew, to house
Slater'’'s operatives. By 1830 the North Dam had certainly reached its present
dimensions, retaining an 18-foot head of water behind the 130-foot long
granite wall. 1In 1829 Slater introduced power looms, presumably demanding
additional power provision, the North Village being involved in both spinning
and weaving.

North Village Bridge

A bridge at the North Village site is first positively identified in
Worcester County deeds. In 1827 Samuel Slater acquired from Stephen Bartlett
(deceased) a parcel of land, "down said river [and] said road [to] the river
[and] the Bridge and Road beyond." The accompanying deed map, dated May 1839,
clearly shows that the bridge spoken of occupied the site of the present North
Village Bridge.(See Figure 1.) At that date the bridge appears to have been a
timber trestle, approximately 70’ in length, supported on seven piers. The
parcel sold included the grist and saw mills, together with all water rights.
The ownership of the bridge was not stated, but by that date the river had
assumed its current name. Zephaniah Keach's 1831 map of Dudley shows that in
addition to the Central Turnpike and Perryville Bridges, several new crossings
of the French River had been completed.(See Figure 2.) North Village Bridge
is shown for the first time, as is the Hill Street Bridge, both the new
structures carrying town roads. The same document shows that the grist and
saw mills still remain accompanied by "Slater'’s Cotton Thread Factory."

On April 22, 1841, the Town of Webster voted "to appoint an agent to
collect of the Town of Dudley, or of persons of that town, one half the
expenses of building the bridge across the French River near the North
Factory."® This appears to be a reference to the North Village Bridge. The
Dudley records apparently have not survived, and their response is not
recorded. Although the records use the term "building," it seems more likely
to have been a rebuilding. Given the short twenty-year average lifespan of
such timber bridges, it would appear the original bridge dated from the second
decade of the century.

Within eighteen years, the North Village Bridge was again in need of
replacement. On September 1, 1859, The Webster Times reported:

A new bridge is being constructed over the French River at the
North Village. The old one has been in an unsafe condition for a
long time, notwithstanding it has been subject to frequent
repairs. The new one is similar in model to the old, being
entirely of wood.
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The construction apparently went well, for just one week later, the newspaper
reported:

The new bridge at the North Village is completed, it being but a
week from the time the workmen commenced demolishing the old
structure until the new one was completed ... [we] congratulate
the contractors for the speedy, and thorough manner in which this
bridge has been constructed.

Town records give no account of the rebuilding of the bridge. It is suggested
that perhaps the Town of Dudley was responsible, under some kind of reciprocal
agreement with the Town of Webster. Later records show that--in common with
many towns sharing a river as a boundary--the location and cost of crossings
was often a matter of dispute.

After little more than a decade the bridge was again requiring
replacement. On September 29, 1871, The Webster Times referred to the bridge
as "an old narrow wooden affair in a very unsafe condition.” A town meeting
was called for September 25:

to see if the Town will vote to build a bridge over the French
River at the North Village, near the Catholic Cemetery, [and also]
to determine what kind of bridges shall be built, and to make
appropriations for the same.

The same meeting wished to seek the opinion of the town on the construction of
two other bridges across the French River. Funds were sought from Dudley only
in the case of the proposed bridge on Oxford Avenue. The meeting was attended
by thirty townsfolk, and was reported in newspaper to have been "entirely
harmonious." The town voted, "to appoint a committee with authority to
contract with Messers Blodgett and Curry of Boston for a wrought iron bridge
at the North Village, with twelve feet driveway, and five feet sidewalk at an
expense not exceeding $2100." A similar vote was passed regarding the Oxford
Avenue crossing. Webster favored either a wrought-iron bridge by Blogett &
Curry of Boston, or a cast-iron bridge by A.D. Briggs of Springfield. The
expenses were not to exceed $4500. The Town of Dudley refused to go along
with eith proposal. The high initial cost of an iron bridge is adequately
illustrated in the proposals for the third bridge discussed at the meeting.
The Chase Avenue Bridge, which together with the Oxford Avenue Bridge cut
across a meander in the French River, was to be a conventional "wooden truss"
structure costing a mere $300. The dispute between Webster and Dudley over
these shared crossings was to continue, and at a meeting later that year,
Webster wished to come to "some arrangement with the Town of Dudley for a
division of the bridges over the French River." Failing an agreement on the
building of the Oxford Avenue Bridge, Webster was prepared to "apply to the
County Commissioners for orders to build said bridge." At that meeting,
according to the local newspaper, $400 was added to the bridge appropriation,
"making it $2500 to build an iron bridge at North Village," which was
"entirely in the hands of Webster." There follows a report on Dudley's
preference for wooden bridges at two French River crossings, costing $1500 in
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total. The "two crossings" were not identified, however on November 25, the
newspaper reported that a new bridge had been completed across the French
River at Perryville. This bridge had been "executed by John D. May of Dudley,
and superintended by A.E. Edwards of Dudley Board of Supervisors." It may be
deduced that the Perryville Bridge was one of the aforementioned "two
crossings." Apparently, it was irksome to the citizens of the senior town
(Dudley) to find their younger and wealthier neighbor in a position to afford
such expressions of municipal wellbeing as iron bridges.9

It would seem that North Village Bridge represented Webster’'s first
experience of the process of contracting for an iron bridge. Indeed, only one
other iron truss was to be built over the French River--that at Perryville,
which was apparently the responsibility of Dudley. No details are given of
the relationship between Blodgett and Curry of National Bridge & Iron Works
and the towns. It is uncertain whether National Bridge was contacted directly
by the town in response to that company's advertising circulars, or whether
that company tendered in reply to a general invitation to bid made by the
town. Unlike the proposed crossing at Oxford Avenue, there is no evidence of
other companies devising plans for the North Village crossing.

Few details of the bridge’s construction can be found. It would seem
that National Bridge was able to fulfil their contract speedily, for -within
some ten weeks of the town meeting in September 1871, the newspaper could
report, "The North Village Bridge is ready for passage, though not quite
complete." The North Village contract seems to be very representative of the
type of work which most suited National Bridge & Iron Works. The Parker-
patent design, which the company specialized in producing, could be applied
speedily--and with little adaptation--to pre-existing crossings, giving the
company significant cost advantages over competitors. The North Village
Bridge shows how the standardized Parker components were adjusted in the end
panels only so that the bridge might correspond to the dimensions of the
existing abutments. Of the five Parker-patent National Bridge & Iron Works
bridges surviving nationally, three demonstrate how the truss lengths have
been similarly adjusted. The company's advertising places particular emphasis
on the replacement of aging spans.'® In the case of a Parker-patent railway
span, the advertisement boasts that "it was completed without a single
interruption to the passage of a train."

The account for the North Village Bridge appears in the Webster Town
Report of 1871-72. It is clear from the entries that the bridge was
constructed on pre-existing abutments. The total cost "of changing the
bridge" was $2493.69, $2315 being paid to Blodgett & Curry "for iron bridge".
The cost of the provision of abutments often equaled or exceeded the cost of
the ironwork, yet only $19.50 was spent on masonry materials, D. Willington
being paid $15.50 "for stone and drawing same," and Chase & Sons being paid $4
for "corner stones." It was common practice for the bridge-building company
to hire their own building team, and it is suggested that the other two
entries for "work" on the bridge (Dyer Freeman, $83.29;and Timothy Higgins,
$13.75) were for modifications to the abutments and demolition of the old
structure. The final cost of the new span exceeded the appropriation by
$93.69. The ironwork was supplied at a cost of some $35 per foot. The
engineering tolerances to which the bridge was constructed were not specified,
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however in -a report on the completion of the bridge in The Webster Times, on
January 6, 1872, it was said that the bridge "will bear up a hundred tons or
more."

Bad winter weather seems to have hindered final completion of the bridge
until January 1, 1872, as reported by the newspaper, but the bridge
celebration was held a few weeks earlier. A party of local selectmen and
dignitaries gathered at about one o’clock with "the thermometer nearly down to
zero," and the possibility of "good sleighing." Five teams and a two horse
sleigh all gathered on the bridge, speeches were made, and "three cheers"
given "for Mr Parsons of Boston, the superintendent of construction" (possibly
a reference to A.W. Parker, the company'’s Superintendent of Works).

The subsequent history of the bridge seems to have remained uneventful
until 1936, when a severe flood occurred in March. The structure was struck
by an oil tank that had floated down from upstream, and the abutments were
damaged. Plans dated from May of that year show that it was in repairing this
damage that the concrete additions to the abutments were made. Although the
waters were to rise above the level of the deck, the bridge withstood the
severe floods of 1955, which carried away the iron truss at Perryville. The
bridge deck was replanked in 1971, and continued in vehicular use for several
more years, until the structure sustained substantial damage, as a result of a
loaded timber truck striking--and then becoming jammed across--the bridge.
Repairs were made, and the bridge was re-opened in 1988, only to be closed
once more in 1989, following a state inspection. The Webster Engineering
Department is anxious to renovate the structure, while others wish to see the
span replaced, either at the same location or slightly upstream.
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By Edward Patenaude
Staff Reporter

WEBSTER — Selectmen want to keep the
old North Village bridge in Webster after a
new span is built on its crossing, but they
don’t know where to put it

A group headed by Town Historian John
Parrillo will try to come up with a recom-
mendation, but a couple of Thompson se-
lectmen were ready to offer one last night.

Selectmen turned to Parrillo after Town

Engineer/Public Works Superintendent
Brett 1. Rekola reported that state plans
for a new bridge “are pretty far down the
pire right now.” Contracts may be Issued
by late spring. It will take a year to build
the new bridge.

Removal of the existing span, closed be
cause of structural problems since ‘the
spring of 1988, will be necessary. While
storane is a short-term option, the town has
mnst find a use for the span because of its
historic significance. While it can't carry

any heavy loads, such as automobiles, it
could be used as a walkway, or for some
other purpose.

Bulilt in 1871, the bridge is eligible for
the Natlonal Register because is is one of
only four known “pony truss” bridges re-
maining in the United States, according to
a State Historical Commission report.

The state will take the North Village
span apart and give the components to the
town, sald Rekola. Finding another loca-

tion, and reducing the width of the bridge
to make it a walkway could be a long-term
project, he said. While selectmen groped
for an alternative, First Selectman Linda
Groh and Selectman Robert Cournoyer of
Thompson were at last night's meeting, re-
iterating that Thompson could use the
bridge in its new Riverside Park, located
on Route 12 in North Grosvenordale.

The French River forms the boundary
between Webster and Dudley as it courses
through this area and continues into Con-

DUD.903 /iluenr .02

Webster s doomed brldge may stay in town

necticut. If moved to North Grosvenordale,
the bridge would still be over the French -
River.

Selectmen didn't rule out the possibility
of giving the bridge to its Connecticut
neighbors, but want to be sure that alterna-
tives are explored. Members suggested that
the ad-hoc committee include Thompson
and Dudley representatives.

Estimated cost for a new span is $1.5 mil-
lion. i
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1. Town Exfebster’jbvbl_ei

Address French River, junction of
North iiain and 0ld Oxford Rd.

Name North Village Bridge

Present use crossing of French River

Present owner Tovwn of Webster

3. Type of structure (check one)

bridge X pound
‘ canal powder house
- £ & a = = 5 = = o dam street ;
fort iy tower
4. Map. Draw sketch of structure location in gate tunnel
relation to nearest cross streets, buildings, kiln wall
other structures, natural features. Indicate lighthouse windmill
north.
other
5. Description
Date_ 1871
Source Town Engineers
Construction material Wrought iron with
' - wooden planks
Dimensions 67 feet by 171 feet
Setting somewhat rural
Condition poor
DO NOT WRITE IN THIS SPACE 6. Recorded by Linda L. 3, Kleinerman
USGS Quadrant

Organization Webster Historical Comm.

MHC Photo no.

Daté December 13, 1978

(over)

sM-5-73075074 (Rev. 1-76)



7.

10.

Original owner (if known) Town of Webster

Original use crossing of French River

Subsequent uses (if any) and dates same

. Themes (check as many as applicable)

Aboriginal Conservation Recreation
Agricultural Education Religion X
Architectural Exploration/ Science/

The Arts settlement X invention
Commerce Industry X . Social/
Communication Military humanitarian
Community development Political Traasportation X

. Historical significance (include explanation of themes checked above)

This bridge, though lacking in architectural importance, is
interesting in that it appears to be on, or very near, the site of
a ford in the French River which was used by Indians for centuries,
and by the colonial settlers during the 18th and 19th centuries.

While we are not certain when the first bridge was built to replace
the ford, we can date its erection as most probably between the dates

1810 to 1830. Cotton mills were erected near the site of the bridge
during those years requiring a dam to be built for water power
driven machinery. This raised the level of the water ané covered
the natural ford. We do know, however, that the river was bridged by
1840, as a survey map for that year indicates it's existence.

By 1859, the Webster Times (September 1) reports: "A new
bridge is being constructed over the French River. The new one will
be similar in model to the old, being entirely of wood." And on
September 8th: "The new bridge at the North Village is completed
but a week from the time the workmen commenced demolishing the old

structure." >

This wooden bridge served the community for nearly 20 years,
when it was replaced in the Fall of 1871 by a wrought iron bridge.

"Still spanning the French River (called the Stoney River in the 18th

century), the bridge, a safety hazard, currently needs replacement.

Bibliography and/or references such as local histories, deeds, assessor's records,
early maps, etc. :

1. Webster Times. September 1 and 8, 1859; December 19, 1871;
- August 13, 1953.
2. Survey of Dudley, Massachuseffs. John Chamberlaine, surveyor.
Dated March 17, 1795.
3. DMap of Webster, Mass, from Actual Survey. William Lester, 1840.
4, "Paul Ekstrom, Engineer's Office.
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